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for greater than I-year. Therefore, the EPA alleges that Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. 
§ 761.65(a)(I). o·n June 3, 2020, Respondent properly removed and disposed the PCB
contaminated transformers.

12. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 761.205(c)(2), PCB generators subject to the storage requirements
of 40 C.F.R. §§.761.65(b) or (c)(7), are required to notify the EPA of their PCB waste
activities by filing EPA Form 7710-53. Prior to, and at the time of the July 9, 2019,
inspection, Respondent was subject to the storage requirements of 40 C.F .R. § 761.65(b );
but failed to notify the EPA of the PCB waste activities by filing EPA Form 7710-53.
Therefore, the EPA alleges that Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 761.205(c)(2).

IV. Consent Agreement

13. For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth
above and neither admits nor denies the factual and legal allegations.

14. Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein and its right to
appeal the proposed final order accompanying the consent agreement.

15. For the purposes of achieving a resolution by settlement, Respondent consents to the
assessment of the penalty proposed by the EPA and agrees to pay the civil penalty as set
forth in this CAFO.

16. Respondent certifies that, to the best of its knowledge, as of the date of its execution of this
CAFO, it is in compliance with all relevant requirements ofTSCA.

17. In accordance with 40 C.F .R. § 22.18( c ), compliance with this CAFO only resolves
Respondent's liability for federal civil penalties for the allegations in Section III of this
CAFO and does not affect the right of the EPA or the U.S. to pursue appropriate injunctive
or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violation of law. This CAFO does not
waive, extinguish or otherwise affect the Respondent's obligation to comply with all
applicable provisions of TSCA or other applicable laws and regulations.

18. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAFO.
The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements ofTSCA.

19. The parties agree to accept service of this CAFO by email to the individuals named in the
Certificate of Service who are each authorized to receive service.

V. Terms of Payment

20. Respondent is assessed a civil penalty of THIRTY-ON� THOUSAND AND SEVEN
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($31,700.00), which shall be paid within 30 days from the
effective date of this CAFO.
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22. At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check and a written
statement that the payment is being made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following
persons at the following addresses:

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street SW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 
bullock.patricia@epa.gov; 

and 

Kris Lippert 
Chemical Safety Section                                     
U.S. EPA Region 4                                 
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division                         
61 Forsyth Street SW
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960.
lippe1t.krisr@epa.gov

23. For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be entitled, and
agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made pursuant to
this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall constitute a
violation of this CAFO.

24. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, the EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts
owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a
delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date of
entry of this CAFO, if the penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge will also be
assessed to cover the administrative costs, both direct and indirect, of

°

overdue debts. In
addition, a late payment penalty·charge shall be applied on any principal amount not paid
within 90 days of the due date.

25. Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this matter.

26. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns.

27. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or she is fully
authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally binds that party to
this CAFO.

VI. Effective Date

28. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with the
Regional Hearing Clerk.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 

In the Matter of: 

Docket No. TSCA-04-2020-3202(b) 

BS Opelika, LLC 

FINAL ORDER 

Respondent. 

The Regional Judicial Officer is authorized to ratify this Consent Agreement which memori.alizes a 
settlement between Complainant and Respondent. 40 C.F .R. §§ 22.4(b) and 22.18(b )(3). The foregoing 
Consent Agreement is, therefore, hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by reference into this Final 
Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment 
of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22. 

The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the foregoing Consent 
Agreement effective immediately upon filing·of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the 
Regio'nal Hearing Clerk. This Final Order �isposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F .R. §§ 22.18 and 
22.31. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Tanya Floyd 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that the foregoing “Consent Agreement” and “Final Order,” in the Matter of BS Opelika, LLC, 
Docket No. TSCA-04-2020-3202(b), were filed and copies of the same were emailed to the parties as 
indicated below. 

Via email to all Parties: 

For the Respondent: 

Alan Davis 
Director of Operations 
BS Opelika, LLC 
adavis@pateholdings.net 

For the EPA: 

Kris Lippert, Environmental Engineer 
Chemical Safety Section 
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
lippert.kris@epa.gov 

Robert Caplan, Senior Counsel 
Office of Regional Counsel 
U.S. EPA Region 4  
caplan.robert@epa.gov 

Quantindra Smith 
Enforcement Compliance and Assurance Division 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Smith.quantindra@epa.gov 

_____________________________________ 
Patricia A. Bullock, Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia  30303-8960 
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